BYLAWS

OF

THE PEAKS AT GREEN MOUNTAIN HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION II, INC.

BYLAWS

OF

The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc.

ARTICLE I GENERAL

Section 1 - Purpose of Bylaws. These Bylaws are adopted for the regulation and management of the affairs of The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit corporation organized to be the association to which reference is made in the Declaration for The Peaks at Green Mountain, ("Declaration"), to perform the functions as provided in the Declaration and to further the interests of Owners of Units within the Project. The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., may sometimes be referred to herein as the "Association".

<u>Section 2 - Terms Defined in Declaration.</u> Capitalized terms in these Bylaws shall have the same meaning as any similarly capitalized terms in the Declaration.

Section 3 - Controlling Laws and Instruments. These Bylaws are controlled by and shall always be consistent with the provisions of the Colorado Nonprofit Corporation Act, the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act, the Declaration and the Articles of Incorporation of The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. filed with the Secretary of State of Colorado, as any of the foregoing may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE II OFFICE AND AGENT

<u>Section 1 - Principal Office</u>. The principal office of the corporation shall be 13095 W. Cedar Ave, #102, Lakewood, Colorado 80228. The Board of Directors, in its discretion, may change, from time to time, the location of the principal office.

Section 2 - Registered Office and Agent. The Colorado Nonprofit Corporation Act requires that The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. have and continuously maintain in the State of Colorado a registered office and a registered agent whose business office is identical with such registered office. The registered office need not be the same as the principal office of The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc.. The initial registered office and the initial registered agent are specified in the Articles of Incorporation of Lakewood Vista at Green Mountain Ranch Association but may be changed by The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. at any time, without amendment to the Articles of Incorporation, by filing a statement as specified by law in the Office of the Secretary of State of Colorado.

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS

Section 1 - Membership in Association. There shall be two classes of members of the Association, to-wit:



Owner/Members: Owner/Members shall be all Owners of Units except the Declarant. Owner/Members shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Unit owned.

Declarant/Member: Declarant/Members shall be the Declarant or persons. or parties designated by Declarant. Declarant/Members shall be entitled to one (1) votes for each Unit owned and shall also be entitled to appoint and remove all or a majority of the Officers and Directors, subject to the terms of the Declaration and these Bylaws.

The voting rights of members shall be as follows:

- (a) Owner/Members shall vote as provided in the Declaration to approve a raise in the minimum assessment which is greater than that allowed by the Declaration; to approve special improvement assessments; to approve mergers, consolidations, or dissolution of the Association; to approve conveyance, dedication, or mortgaging of the Common Elements; to approve amendments to the Declaration after the Declarant's rights to amend have terminated; to elect up to two (2) Members to the Board of Directors of the Association with the manner of election to be described in the Bylaws of the Association during the period of Declarant control; and to elect all members of the Board of Directors after the period of Declarant control.
- (b) Declarant/Members shall be entitled to the same voting privileges as have been identified for the Owner/Members until the voting rights or the Declarant/Members shall cease.

Each Owner/Member shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Unit owned, provided that (i) the Association may suspend any Owner/Member's voting rights in the Association during any period or periods that such Owner fails to comply with the rules and regulations of the Association adopted by the Board of Directors or with any other obligation of the Member under the Bylaws or the Declaration, (ii) no Owner/Member shall have the right to vote until (a) the Secretary of the Association has received from either the Member or from a title company licensed to do business in the State of Colorado a certified copy of the recorded deed or other recorded instrument establishing record title to a Unit, and (b) if the Member shall be more than one (1) person or a corporation or a partnership, a written notice subscribed to by all of such persons or by such corporation, as the case may be, designating one of such person an officer of such corporation as the person entitled to cast the votes with respect to such Unit; but all of the other rights and all other obligations of the Owner of such Unit hereunder shall be unaffected including, without limitation, the right to use the Common Elements and the obligation to pay assessments.

Members shall have no preemptive rights to purchase other Units or the Membership appurtenant thereto.

Any person or entity qualifying as a Member of more than one voting class may exercise those votes to which the member is entitled for each class of membership.

Section 2 - Election of Directors.

- (a) <u>Appointed Directors</u>. During the period of time identified in the Declaration that the Declarant shall be entitled to appoint Directors, the Declarant shall be allowed to appoint a maximum of three (3) Directors until that right ceases in accordance with the Association Declaration. Appointed Directors need not be members of the Association.
- (b) <u>Elected Directors</u>. Subsequent to the period of Declarant control, Owner/Member shall elect a Board of Directors in accordance with an election schedule which shall be established by the Appointed Board with the qualification that one-third (1/3) of the total number of elected board member's term shall expire annually. Election of the board shall be owners within The Peaks I Association.
- (c) <u>Number of Directors.</u> The Board of Directors shall consist of a maximum of five 5) individuals. Two (2) directors shall be appointed during the period of Declarant control. Upon termination of the Declarant control period, the members shall elect a Board of Directors of at least three (3) members.

Section 3 - Annual Meetings and Special Meetings.

Efe

- (a) Annual meetings of the Members shall be held in _____ of each year beginning in ____ of 2003, on such day in _____ and at such time of day as is fixed by the Board of Directors of The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. and specified in the notice of meeting. The annual meeting shall be held to elect Directors of The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. and to transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.
- (b) It shall be the duty of the President, and, should the President fail to do so, of the Vice President, to call a special meeting of the Owners as provided in this Section. Special meetings may be called by the President, by a majority of Board Members or upon a petition signed by twenty percent (20%) of the Members of the Association. Notice of a special meeting shall be given in compliance with Section 7 of this Article. The date of any special meeting being called upon by a petition of Members shall be not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than thirty (30) days from receipt of such petition by the Secretary.

Section 4 - Quorum. A quorum is deemed present throughout any meeting of the Association if persons entitled to cast twenty percent (20%) of votes which may be cast for election of the Board of Directors are present, in person or in proxy at the beginning of the meeting except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or in the Declaration. The question as to the presence of a quorum may only be raised immediately after the meeting has been called to order. If the presence of a quorum has not been questioned or if by count it appears that a quorum is present, then the regularity of the proceedings or the validity of the transactions of the meeting shall in no way be affected by lack of a quorum or by change in the number present that may take place during the meeting, if no quorum be present, the presiding officer may adjourn the meeting to some other time, not later than seven (7) days from the date of such meeting, and such adjourned meeting shall have the same effect as if held on the day appointed.

When a quorum is present at any meeting the vote of a majority of the Members present in person or represented by written proxy shall decide all questions and such vote shall be binding upon all Owners, unless the question is one upon which, by express provision of the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, a different vote is required, in which case such express provisions shall govern and control the decision of such question.

Section 5 - Waiver and Consent. Whenever the vote of Members at a Meeting is required or permitted by any provision of the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation, or of these Bylaws to be taken in connection with any action, the Meeting and vote of Members may be dispensed with if all Members who would have been entitled to vote upon the action if such Meeting were held, shall consent in writing to such action being taken. Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Members, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of the Members, may be taken without a meeting if a consent, in writing, setting forth the actions to be taken shall be signed by fifty-one percent (51%) of the Members entitled to vote with, respect to the subject matter thereof.

<u>Section 6 - Place of Meetings</u>. Meetings shall be held at a suitable place within the State of Colorado convenient to the Owners as may be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 7 - Notice of Meeting It shall be the duty of the Secretary, at least fourteen (14) but not more than thirty (30) days prior to each annual or special meeting, to cause notice to be hand delivered or sent prepaid by United States mail to each Unit or to any other mailing address designated in writing by the Member. The notice of any meeting must state the time and place of the meeting and the items on the agenda, including the general nature of any proposed amendment to the declaration or bylaws, any budget changes, and any proposals to remove an officer or member of the Board of Directors.

Section 8 - Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings shall be as follows to the extent require:

- (a) Roll call
- (b) Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice
- (c) Report of officers



- (d) Report of Board of Directors
- (e) Report of committees
- (f) Election of inspectors of election (in the event there is an election)
- (g) Election of Directors (in the event there is an election)
- (h) Unfinished business
- (i) New business
- (j) Adjournment

<u>Section 9 - Record Date.</u> File record date for determination of Members entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of the Members shall be the date on which the notice of the meeting is mailed or otherwise delivered.

Section 10 - Voting List. The officer or agent having charge of the records of the Association shall make, at least ten (10) days before each meeting of Members, a complete list of Members entitled to vote at such meeting or any adjournment thereof arranged in alphabetical order together with the address of such Member, which list, for a period of ten (10) days prior to such meeting, shall be kept on file at the principal office of the Association and shall be subject to inspection by any Member at any time during usual business hours. Such list shall also be produced and kept open at the time and place of the meeting and shall be subject to inspection by any member during the whole time of the meeting.

Section 11 - Voting By Multiple Owners. If only one of the multiple Owners of a Unit is present at a meeting of the Association, such Owner is entitled to cast all the votes allocated to that Unit. If more than one of the multiple Owners are present, the votes allocated to that Unit may be cast only in accordance with the agreement of a majority in interest of the Owners, unless the Declaration expressly provides otherwise. There is a majority agreement if any one of the multiple Owners casts the votes allocated to that Unit without protest being made promptly to the person presiding over the meeting by any of the other Owners of the Unit.

Section 12 - Proxies. At all meetings of the Members, a Member may vote by proxy executed in writing by the Member or by a duly authorized attorney-in-fact. If any Unit is owned by more than one person, each Owner of the Unit may vote or register protest to the casting of votes by the other Owners of the Unit through a duly executed proxy. Such proxy may be filed with the Secretary of the Association before or at the time of the meeting. A Unit Owner may not revoke a proxy given pursuant to this Section except by actual notice of revocation to the person presiding over a meeting of the Association. A proxy is void if it is not dated or purports to be revocable without notice. A proxy terminates eleven (11) months after its date, unless it provides otherwise.

Section 13 - Informal Action by Owners. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Owners may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Owners entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the Owners.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS

<u>Section 1 - Number, Qualifications and Term.</u> The number of Directors which shall constitute the whole Board shall be as set forth in Article III, Section 2, of these Bylaws.

All elected Directors shall be Owners or an Officer of an Owner, if the Owner shall be a corporation, and any such Director who ceases to be an Owner shall automatically be deemed to have resigned. At the expiration of the initial term of office of each such respective Director, a successor shall be elected to serve a term of one (1) year. All Directors shall hold office until their successors have been elected and qualify.

Section 2 - Vacancy and Replacement. If the office of any elected Director or Directors becomes vacant by reason



of death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office, or otherwise, a majority of the remaining Directors, though less than a quorum, at a special meeting of the Directors, duly called for this purpose, shall choose a successor or successors who shall hold office for the unexpired term with respect to which such vacancy occurred.

<u>Section 3 - Removal.</u> Elected directors may be removed with or without cause by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Members at any meeting of Members where quorum is present so long as the notice therefor indicates the purpose. No elected Director shall continue to serve on the Board if, during that term of office, the Director shall cease to be an Owner.

Section 4 - Initial Board of Directors. The initial Appointed Board of Directors shall consist of three (3) persons designated as such in the Articles of Incorporation who shall hold office and exercise all powers of the Board of Directors until the expiration of the period of Declarant Control as provided for in the Declaration. Any or all of said Directors may be replaced by the Declarant until the first annual meeting of Owners described in Article III, Section 3 of these Bylaws. The Owners shall elect two (2) directors to increase the total number of Directors to five (5) members as provided for in Article III, Section 2(b), of these Bylaws. Following the period of Declarant control, the Owners shall elect all five (5) directors.

Section 5 - Powers. The Board shall have general charge, management, and control of the affairs, funds, and property of the Association and shall authorize and control all expenditures pursuant and subject to the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, and these Bylaws. It shall have the powers granted to the Association in the Articles of Incorporation or Declaration and the duty to carry out the purposes of the Association according to law and as set forth in the Articles, these Bylaws, and the Declaration.

Section 6 - Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution or resolutions passed by a majority of the whole Board, designate one or more committees, each of such committees to consist of two (2) Directors which, to the extent provided in said resolution or resolutions and subject to the limitations of Colorado law and of the Declaration, shall have and may exercise such powers of the Board in the management of the business and affairs of the Project as the resolution or resolutions of the Board shall specifically provide. Such committee or committees shall have such name or names as may be determined from time to time by resolution adopted by the Board of Directors. Committees established by resolution of the Board of Directors shall keep regular minutes of their proceedings and shall report the same to the Board as required. The provisions of this Section 6 shall not apply to the Architectural Review Committee nor the Tribunal (per Article XII, Section 4) and shall not require a Director as a member of those Committees.

Section 7 - Compensation. Directors and Officers shall receive no compensation for their services as such.

Section 8 - Meetings.

- (a) Following the period of Declarant control, the annual meeting of each Board of Directors newly elected by the Owners shall be held immediately upon adjournment of the meeting at which they were elected, provided a quorum shall then be present, or as soon thereafter as may be practicable at the same place as the Owners' Meeting at which time the dates, places, and times of regularly scheduled meetings of the Board shall be set.
- (b) There shall be held at least two (2) regularly scheduled meetings of the Board each year without special notice to the Directors.
- (c) Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President on seven (7) days' notice (except in emergency when less notice may be given) to each Director either personally or by mail or telegram except in the event of an emergency when less notice may be given. Special meetings shall be called by the President or Secretary in a like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least two (2) Directors. All such notices of special meetings shall state the purpose thereof.



- (d) A quorum is deemed present throughout any meeting of the Board of Directors if persons entitled to cast a majority of votes on the Board are present at the beginning of the meeting. Any act of the majority of the Directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board, except as may otherwise specifically be provided by Statute, Articles of Incorporation, by the Declaration or by these Bylaws. If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of Directors, the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.
- (e) Before, at, or after any meeting of the Board of Directors, any Director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a Director to any meeting of the Board shall be a waiver of notice thereof by that Director. If all the Directors are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.
- <u>Section 9 Meetings Open to Owners.</u> Meetings of the Board shall be open to all Owners and Institutional Mortgagees.
- <u>Section 10 Management Agent</u>. The Board of Directors may employ under a term contract or otherwise at a compensation established by the Board of Directors a management agent to perform such duties and services as the Board shall authorize subject to the provisions and limitations set forth in the Declaration and Article VI of these Bylaws.

ARTICLE V OFFICERS

- Section 1 Elective Officers. The Board shall elect at its annual meeting each year a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. All officers (other than those selected by Declarant) must be Owners.
- <u>Section 2 Term.</u> Each Officer shall hold office until his or her successor is elected and shall qualify, but any Officer may be removed and/or replaced, with or without cause, at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the whole Board of Directors
- <u>Section 3 The President</u>. The President shall be chosen from among the members of the Board of Directors and shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Association. He or she shall preside at all meetings of the Association and the Board of Directors, shall be an member of all standing committees except any nominating committee, and shall perform such other duties as are incident to the office or properly required by the Board.
- <u>Section 4 The Vice President.</u> The Vice President shall perform such duties as are properly required by the Board of Directors and, in the absence or disability of the President, take the place and perform all duties of the President.
- <u>Section 5 The Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Association and of the Board in a business-like manner and shall issue all general notices. He or she shall make such reports and perform such other duties as are incident to the office or are properly required by the Board. The minutes of all such meetings shall be available for inspection by Owners at all reasonable times.

He or she shall keep current copies of the following documents and make the same available for inspection by Unit Owners or holders, insurers or guarantors of first mortgages secured by Units within the Lakewood Vista at Green Mountain Ranch Project: (i) Declaration for Lakewood Vista at Green Mountain Ranch; (ii) Articles of Incorporation for The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc.; (iii) these Bylaws; (iv) Rules and Regulations of the Association as well as any other rules concerning the Project; and (v) minutes of Board meetings and Owners' meetings; and (vi) other records as may be determined by the Board.

Section 6 - The Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the custody of the Association funds and securities and shall keep



full and accurate chronological account of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to the Association including the vouchers for such disbursements and shall deposit all monies and other valuable effects in the name and the credit of the Association in such depositories as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

He or she shall disburse the funds of the Association as may be ordered by the Board, making proper vouchers for such disbursements and shall render to the President and Directors, at the regular meetings of the Board or whenever they may require it, an account of all transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Association.

He or she shall keep detailed financial records and books of account of the Association including a separate account for each Unit which, among other things, shall contain the amount of each Assessment against such Unit, the date when due, the amounts paid thereon, and the balance remaining unpaid. Such financial records shall be made available for inspection by Unit Owners or by holders, insurers, and guarantors of first mortgages that are secured by Units in the Project.

He or she shall perform all other duties incident to the office or which may be properly required by the Board.

<u>Section 7 - Agreements.</u> All agreements and other instruments authorized by the Board shall be executed by the President and/or such other person or persons as may be designated by the Board.

Section 8 - Vacancy and Replacement. If the position of any officer becomes vacant by reason of death, resignation, retirement, disqualification, removal from office, or otherwise, the Board, at a special meeting of the officers duly called for this purpose, shall choose a successor or successors who shall hold office for the unexpired term with respect to which such vacancy occurred.

<u>Section 9 - Removal.</u> Officers may be removed with cause by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Members at any meeting of Members when the notice therefor indicates the purpose. No officer shall continue to serve on the Board if, during the term of office, the officer shall cease to be an Owner.

<u>Section 10 - Assistants.</u> An Assistant Secretary shall be appointed by the Board of Directors if the Board of Directors determines the position is necessary. The qualifications for the position of Assistant Secretary shall be identical to the position of Secretary. If appointed, the Assistant Secretary shall serve in the absence of the Secretary, and shall have all powers, duties and responsibilities of the Secretary.

Section 11 - Informal Action by Directors. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the directors may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action to be taken, shall be signed by all of the directors entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof. Such consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the directors.

Section 12 - Amendments to the Declaration. All amendments to the Declaration on behalf of the Association shall be:

- (a) Prepared by the Secretary or any other officer as directed by the President;
- (b) Executed by the President;
- (c) Certified to by the Secretary;
- (d) Recorded by the Secretary or any other officer.



ARTICLE VI MANAGING AGENT

Section 1 - Employment of Managing Agent. The The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. shall have the power to retain and pay for the services of a Manager or Managers to undertake any of the management or functions for which the Officers, or Directors of The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. has responsibility under this Declaration to the extent deemed advisable by the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., and may delegate any of its duties, powers or functions to any such Manager. Any contract or agreement with any such Manager shall be terminable by the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. for cause on no more than thirty (30) days prior written notice, and shall be terminable by the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. without cause and without payment of a termination fee on no more than ninety (90) days prior written notice. Any such contract or agreement shall be for a term of no more than one (1) year but may be subject to renewal for succeeding terms of no more than one (1) year each. Notwithstanding any delegation to a Manager of any duties, powers or functions of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., and its Board of Directors shall remain ultimately responsible for the performance and exercise of such duties, powers and functions. An agreement or contract with a Manager shall contain any other provisions which are required to be contained therein by any Government Mortgage Agency.

Section 2 - Fidelity Insurance. The Manager shall maintain fiduciary insurance coverage or a bond in an amount not less than the higher of (i) Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00); (ii) an amount not less than two (2) months' current assessments plus reserves; or (iii) such other amount as the Board of Directors may require.

<u>Section 3 - Maintaining Association Funds.</u> The Manager shall maintain all funds and accounts of the Association separate from the funds and accounts of other associations managed by the Manager and shall maintain all reserve accounts of each association so managed separate from operational accounts of the Association.

<u>Section 4 - Annual Accounting</u> An annual accounting for Association funds and a financial statement shall be prepared and presented to the Association by the Manager, a public accountant, or a certified public accountant.

ARTICLE VII NOTICES

Each Owner shall register a mailing address with the Association, and except for monthly statements and other routine notices, all other notices or demands intended to be served upon an Owner (including, without limitation, notice of matters affecting the Project) shall be sent either registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed in the name of the Owner at such registered mailing address. In the event an Owner fails to register a mailing address with the Association as set forth herein, such Owner's registered mailing address shall be the mailing address of the Unit owned by such Owner. All notices, demands or other notices intended to be served upon the Board of Directors of the Association or the Association shall be sent certified mail, postage prepaid, to the office of the Association at such address as identified by the Association in writing to each Owner.

Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Declaration, or of these Bylaws, a waiver thereof, in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed the equivalent thereof.

ARTICLE VIII ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

Section 1 - Composition. If activated by the Board of Directors of the Association, the members of the Committee



shall include three (3) persons appointed by the Board of Directors and shall serve staggered three (3) year terms as determined by the Board after the period of Declarant control. Membership to the Architectural Review Committee shall be limited to Association Members.

<u>Section 2 - Vacancies.</u> Appointments to fill vacancies of unexpired terms to the Committee shall be made by the Board, and the individual selected shall complete the unexpired term if any vacancy is created.

<u>Section 3 - Duties.</u> The Architectural Review Committee shall regulate the design, alteration and repair of the Project or Units as described in the Declaration.

ARTICLE IX RULES AND REGULATIONS

Reasonable uniform rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Elements and Limited Common Elements and the conduct of persons entitled to use such Property may be adopted and amended from time to time by the Board. All Owners shall obey the rules and regulations as promulgated by the Board.

ARTICLE X MORTGAGEES

Section 1 - Notice to Association. An Owner who mortgages his Unit or the Mortgagee shall notify the Association of the name and address of the Mortgagee and shall file a conformed copy of the Mortgage with the Association. The Association shall maintain such information in a book entitled "Mortgagees of Units."

Section 2 - Notice of Default. The Association shall give notice to an Owner of a default in payment of Assessments of Common Elements expenses or other default imposed by the terms and conditions of the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, or Bylaws of the corporation, and if such default is not cured within sixty (60) days, the Association shall send a copy of such notice to each holder of a Mortgage covering such Unit if the name and address of such Mortgagee has been previously furnished to the Association as provided in Section 1 of this Article.

ARTICLE XI AMENDMENTS

Section 1 - Amendments to Bylaws. Amendments to these Bylaws may be adopted at a regular or special meeting of the members of the Association at which a quorum is present upon receiving the vote of seventy-five percent (75%) of the membership of the Association who are present at the meeting or who have provided proxies to be voted upon the proposed amendment; provided, however, that no amendments shall be adopted which would render these Bylaws inconsistent with the Declaration.

Section 2 - Amendments to Declaration. Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration, any provision or Restriction contained in the Declaration may be amended or repealed at any time and from time to time upon approval of the amendment or repeal by members of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. holding at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the voting power of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. present in person or by proxy at a duly constituted meeting of such Members. The amendment or repeal shall be effective upon the Recordation in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Jefferson County, Colorado, of a certificate, executed by the President or a Vice President and the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. setting forth the amendment or repeal in full and certifying that the



ARTICLE XII NOTICE AND HEARING PROCEDURES

Section 1 - The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. Enforcement. In the event of an alleged violation by a Member or a Related User of a Member ("Respondent") of the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., the Board of Directors shall have the right, upon an affirmative vote of a majority of all Directors on the Board, to take any one or more of the actions and to pursue one or more of the remedies permitted under the provisions of the Declaration, these Bylaws, or the Rules and Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc.. If, under the provisions of the Declaration, these Bylaws, or such Rules and Regulations, Notice and Hearing is required prior to taking, action or pursuing remedies, the following provisions of Article XII of these Bylaws shall be applicable. The failure of the Board or the Review Committee to enforce the Rules and Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., these Bylaws or the Declaration shall not constitute a waiver of the right to enforce the same thereafter. The remedies set forth and provided in the Declaration, the Rules and Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. or these Bylaws shall be cumulative and none shall be exclusive. However, any individual Member must exhaust all available internal remedies of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. prescribed by these Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. before that Member may resort to a court of law for relief with respect to any alleged violation by another Member of the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., provided that the foregoing limitation pertaining to exhausting administrative remedies shall not apply to the Board or to any Member where the complaint alleges nonpayment of Common Assessments, Special Assessments, supplemental Assessments or Reimbursement Assessments.

Section 2 - Written Complaint. A hearing to determine whether enforcement action under the Declaration, the Rules and Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. or these Bylaws should be taken and shall be initiated by the filing, with the President or the Board of Directors of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., of a written complaint by any Member of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., any officer, any member of the Board of Directors or the Review Committee or any employee or agent of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. (the "Complaint"). The Complaint shall contain a written statement of charges which shall set forth in ordinary and concise language the acts or omissions with which the Respondent is charged and a reference to the specific provisions of the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Rules or Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. which the Respondent is alleged to have violated. If the charges relate to a party who is a tenant, invitee, spouse, child or other party occupying a Unit with the Owner's consent ("Related User"), both the Related User and the Member shall be considered as Respondents.

<u>Section 3 - Notice of Complaint and Notice of Defense.</u> A copy of the Complaint shall be served on each Respondent in accordance with the notice provisions set forth in the Declaration, together with a statement which shall be substantially in the following form:

Unless a written request for a hearing signed by or oil behalf of a person named as Respondent in the accompanying, Complaint is delivered or mailed to the Board of Directors within fifteen (15) days after the Complaint is served upon you, the Board of Directors may proceed upon the Complaint without a hearing and you will have thus waived your right to a hearing. The request for a hearing may be made by delivering or mailing the enclosed form entitled "Notice of Defense" to the Board of Directors at the following address:



You may, but need not be represented by counsel at any or all stages of these proceedings. If
you desire the names and addresses of witnesses or an opportunity to inspect any relevant
writings or items on file in connection with this matter in the possession, custody or control of
the Board of Directors, you may contact
Washington Southern Table

A Respondent shall be entitled to a hearing on the merits of the matter if the Notice of Defense is timely filed with the Board of Directors. Regardless or whether or not a Notice of Defense is filed, a Respondent may file a separate statement wherein lie or she sets forth information which he or she feels is relevant to the circumstances surrounding the alleged violation giving rise to the Complaint and which may justify his or her action or inaction, as the case may be (the "Statement of Mitigation").

Section 4 - Tribunal. Upon receipt of a written Complaint, the President shall appoint a Hearing Committee ("Tribunal") of three (3) Association Members who are natural persons. In appointing the members of the Tribunal, the President Should make a good faith effort to avoid appointing next-door neighbors of the Respondent or any Members of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. who are essential witnesses to the alleged violation giving rise to the Complaint. The decision of the President shall be final, except that each Respondent may challenge any member of the Tribunal for cause, where a fair and impartial hearing cannot be afforded, at any time prior to the taking of evidence at the hearing. In the event of such a challenge, the Board of Directors shall meet to determine the sufficiency of the challenge. If such a challenge is sustained, the President shall appoint another Member to replace the challenged member of the Tribunal. All decisions of the Board of Directors in this regard shall be final. The Tribunal shall elect a Chairman and appoint a hearing officer who shall take evidence and ensure that a proper record of all proceedings is maintained.

Section 5 - Notice of Hearing. The Tribunal shall serve a Notice of Hearing, as provided herein, on all parties at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing if such hearing is requested by a Respondent. The hearing shall be held no sooner than thirty (30) days after the Complaint is mailed or delivered to each Respondent. The Notice of Hearing to each Respondent shall be substantially in the following form but may include other information:

You are hereby notified that a hearing will be held before a Tribunal appointed by the

Preside	nt of the The Peaks at Green Mountain	in Homeowners A	Association II, Inc., at
	on the	day of _	
20	at the hour of		m., upon the charges
need no full opp seek the items in	the Complaint served upon you. You to be represented by counsel, may pre- portunity to cross-examine all witness attendance of witnesses and to comp to the possession of the The Peaks at C g to the Board of Directors of the The	sent any relevant es testifying again pel the production Green Mountain H	evidence, and will be given nst you. You are entitled to 1 of books, documents or other

Section 6 - Hearing.

- (a) Oral evidence shall be taken only on oath or affirmation administered by a member of the Tribunal. The use of affidavits and written questions and responses in lieu of oral testimony shall be encouraged by the Tribunal.
- (b) Each party shall have these rights: to call and examine witnesses; to introduce exhibits; to cross-examine witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues; to impeach any witness; and to rebut the evidence against such party. If Respondent does not testify in his own behalf, he may be called and examined as if under cross-examination.



- (c) The hearing need not be conducted according to technical rules relating to evidence and witnesses. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the sort of evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs, regardless of the existence of any common law or statutory rule which might make improper the admission of such evidence over objection in civil action. Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of supplementing or explaining other evidence but shall not be sufficient in itself to support a finding unless it would be admissible over objection in civil actions. The rules of privilege shall be effective to the extent that they are otherwise required by statute to be recognized at the hearing, and irrelevant and unduly repetitive evidence shall be excluded.
- (d) Neither the person filing the Complaint nor the Respondent must be in attendance at the hearing. The hearing shall be open to attendance by any Members of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. to the extent of the permissible capacity of the hearing room.
- (e) In rendering a decision, official notice may be taken at any time of any provision of the Declaration, these Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. or any generally understood matter within the working of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc.. Persons present at the hearing shall be informed of the matters to be noticed by the Tribunal, and these matters shall be made a part of the record of proceedings.
 - (f) The Tribunal may grant continuances on a showing of good cause.
- (g) Whenever the Tribunal has commenced to hear the matter and a member of the Tribunal is forced to withdraw prior to a final determination by the Tribunal, the remaining members shall continue to hear the case and the hearing officer shall replace the withdrawing member.

Section 7 - Decision. If a Respondent fails to file a Notice of Defense as provided in Article XII, Section 3, of these Bylaws, or fails to appear at a hearing, the Tribunal may take action based upon the evidence presented to it without further notice to the Respondent. However, the Respondent may make any showing by way of a Statement of Mitigation. The Tribunal will prepare written findings of fact and recommendations for consideration by the Board of Directors. The Tribunal shall make its determination only in accordance with these Bylaws. After all testimony and documentary evidence has been presented by the Tribunal, the Tribunal may vote by secret written ballot upon the matter, with a majority of the entire Tribunal controlling. A copy of the findings and recommendations of the Tribunal may be posted by the Board of Directors at a conspicuous place in Peaks at Green Mountain I, Development, and a copy shall be served by the President to each Person directly involved in the matter and his attorney, if any, in accordance with the notice provisions set forth in the Declaration. Disciplinary action, levy of a Reimbursement Assessment or other action or remedies which require Notice and Hearing under the Declaration, these Bylaws or Rules and the Regulations of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. shall be imposed only by the Board of Directors of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. and in accordance with the findings and recommendations of the Tribunal. The Board of Directors may adopt the recommendations of the Tribunal in their entirety or the Board may reduce the proposed penalty and adopt the balance of the recommendations. In no event shall the Board impose more stringent enforcement action than recommended by the Tribunal. The decision of the Board shall be in writing and shall be served and may be posted in the same manner as the findings and recommendations of the Tribunal. The decision of the Board shall become effective ten (10) days after it is served upon each Respondent, unless otherwise ordered in writing by the Board of Directors. The Board may order a reconsideration at any time within fifteen (15) days following a service of its decision on the involved persons, on its own motion or on petition by any party. However, no action against a Respondent arising from the alleged violation shall take effect prior to the expiration of the later of (a) fifteen (15) days after each Respondent's receipt of the Notice of Hearing; or (b) five (5) days after the hearing required herein.

ARTICLE XIII MISCELLANEOUS

<u>Section 1 - Severability</u>. Should any of the covenants, terms, or provisions herein imposed be void or be or become unenforceable at law or in equity, the remaining provisions of these Bylaws shall, nevertheless be and remain in full force and effect.

<u>Section 2 - Construction.</u> Wherever the masculine singular form of the pronoun is used in these Bylaws, it shall be construed to mean the masculine, feminine, or neuter; singular or plural; wherever the context so requires.

<u>Section 3 - Rules of Procedure.</u> The Rules of Parliamentary Procedure as set forth in Roberts' "Parliamentary Law" shall prevail at all meetings of Members or Directors of the Association.

<u>Section 4 - Interpretations.</u> In the event that any question arises with respect to the construction of any of the provisions of the Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations of the Association, the decision of the Board with respect thereto shall be final and binding upon the Association and the Owners.

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

- I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that:
- I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc., a Colorado corporation (the "The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc."); and
- 2. The foregoing Bylaws, comprised of fifteen (11) pages, including this page, constitute the Bylaws of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. duly adopted at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the The Peaks at Green Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. duly held on February 4, 2003, 2003.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed Mountain Homeowners Association II, Inc. this	my hand day of	and affix	ed the seal of	the The Peak	s at Green 2003.
(Seal)	8	Quar	Law	Ray	iet.
	Secre	tary	V		